UNITED NATIONS GENERAL
ECONOMIC B Sanhany 1950

AND
SOCIAL COUNCIL

ORIGINAL: ENGLISH

ECONOMIC AND EMPLOYMENT COMMISSION
Fifth Session
SUMMARY RECORD OF THE NINETY-SIXTH MEETING

Helid at Lake Success, New York,
on Fridey, 20 January 1956, at 3 p.m.

CONTINTS:
National and international measures for full employment: report by a
group of experts appointed by the Secretary-General (E/1584) (continued).

Chairman: Mr. WILSON Australia
Raggorteur:b Mr. DEUTSCH Canada
Members; Mr. GODEAU* Belgium
Mr. NUNES CUIMARAES Brazil
Moo EQ China
Me. STIUERT) Cuba
Mr, Cs SEYWISH Trance
Mr. SAKSENA india
Mr. HAAVELMO* Norway
Mr. FLEMING Uuited Kingdom of Great Britain and
Northern Ireland )
Mr. LUBIN United States of Americe
*Alternates

Any corrections to this record should be submitted in duplicate in either
of the working languages (English or French), within two working days, to the
Director, Officlal Records Division, Room F-520, Lake Success. Corrections
should bear the appropriate symbol number and be erclosed in an envelope marked
"UR‘ZERTE G EricVidsDeah be dealt with more speedily if delegations will be

gooh enough to incorporatg them in a mimeogrephed copy of the record.
JAN 28 1950

UNITED NATIONS
ARCHIVES




E/CN.1/SR.96
Page 2

Representatives of specialized agencies:

Mr. EVANS International Labour Organisation (TLO)

Mr. EZEKIEL Food and Agriculture Organization (FAO)

Mr. KING International Bank for Reconstruction and

Development

Mr. FISHER International Monetary Fund
Consultants from non-governmental organizations:

Miss SANSOM International Chember of Commerce {ICC)

Miss SENDER American Federation of Labor (AF of L)
Secretariat: |

Mr. WEINTRAUB gecretary of the Commission

Mr. VARLEY Assistant Secretary of the Commission

NATIONAL AND INTERNATIONAL MEASURES FOR FULL EMPLOYMENT: REPORT BY A GROUP OF
EXPERTS APPOINTED BY THZ SECRETARY-GENTRAL (E/1584) (Continued)

1. Mr. EZEKIRL (Food and Agriculture Organization) stated that FAO had
not had sufficient time for detailed study or final judgment of the report. FAO
howvever welcomed the initietive of the Economic and Social Council and the
Comnittee of Experts in giving impetus to further study of the problem.

2. Cleerly the problem of unemployment was of great concern to farmers,
whose markets depended upon the level of economic activity. Even slight
declines in employment were reflected in reduced income and reduced buying power
for farmers. FAQ was therefore seriously concerned over measures to reduce
agricultural output in certain countries.

3. Mr. Ezekiel indicated that the report ignored the fact that current
Government full employment programmes in the international field were generally
mutually destructive, since they either represented reciprocal efforts to defend
one economy at the expense of cthers, or involved the redirection of foreign
trade and production in order to secure products from sourses which were less
adventageous but had softer cﬁrrencies, while hard currency countries restricted

theiy output to make up for-vanishing exports. The Commission should bear in

/mind



E/CN.1/SR.96
Page 3

mind that the alternative to the recommendations in the report was the prevailing
ineffective and deStructiVe*policy in world trade. The question was treated 1in

‘paragraphs 56 and 57 in theoretical detail, but care must be taken to avoid’
general ‘couniter- -cyclical action. o
4, "' Discussion of the report was helpful in that most members of the -
Commission had not opposed the general methods to be used in achieving full

“employment. Although differences of opinion arose regarding mechanisms for
carrying a programme of full employment into effect; economists seemed to have
reached general agreement regarding causes and cures for unemployment.,

45. i "‘Refer ring'to the suggestion of the Chairman regarding the necessity
of overhauling international machinery, Mr. Ezekiel recalled that FAO had made
far-reaching and dynamlc pr0posals for change, which Governments had so far--

x'been unwilling to accept ’ '

6. ‘Without at that stage coimenting on the ‘individual detailed proposals
contained in the report “he stressed the fact that one of the’ importantéspects
of the entire problem was that, if an expanding world economy was to be
successfully achieved it must be different from the situation prevailing in
the past when the expandlng, rising consumption level had been far more
marked in the western world than in the East. One of the essential advances™ -
iwas the recognltion that rising standards of living were necessary for the East
has well as the West. Due attentlon mist be given to the development of

'technical a551stance and the report wis especially commendable in its emphasis
on the p051tion of under-develqped countries. ' o R
k7. ' : Referring to the recommendations in the report for changes in irter-
national financial 1nstitutions, particularly paragraph 195, which would meke
financing by ‘the Bank more broadly’ representative Mr. Ezekiel stated that FAO
vas gratified to flnd that that recommendation was similar to those previously
contained in reports of the FAO.

»8. ' He expressed the h0pe that the report would be serlously considered

and acted upon by Governments.

9. Mr. FISHER (International Monetary Fund) stated ‘that the report raised
meny questions on both the policy and the technical levels, on which it was
hardly possible to take a firm position without further careful study. The

‘statement of the Fund must therefore be regerded as provisionsl.
R : /10. The Fund



E/CN.1/SR.96
Puge ,4

10, The Fund, was, however, necessarily concerned with the problems which
gkt ariee when, either before or after the difficulties caused by the cuzrent
international disequilibrium had been reeolved, the effects of so-called norma;
cyclical fluctuations must again te faced. &ince responsibility for dealingv_
with thcse problems must be widely shared, the Fund welcomed the insistence of
the experts upon the close interdepsndsncs of policy measuras in the various:
relevent fields, - Partly for that resson, it would be unprofitable to enter into
& ‘discussion: of the technical questions raised in thoss parts of the report
specifically directed towards actlvities for which the Fund led a speclal
responsibility. In e sense, those were contingsnt questions which would depend
on actions taken in other directions. : : . - '
11.- He recalled that the Fund lmd the 1mportant function of pro ecuing B
the payments positicn of its members so that dbalance pf payments pressureéiwbuld
" not become-intolerable during the_period,when more far-reeching and permanenu
measures sultabls to tae circumstances of individual cpuntiies wers being
applied. To that end, it might be necessary at an aﬁproﬁriate time to increase
the resources of ths Fund. IV was, however, also essontial that any upre iiberal
provision of financial protection should not be regarded as makinglit easy'for,
members to avoid or unduly postpone any_necessarj adjustments iu their trﬁdihg
‘position to structural chenges in world economy. The activities of the Fund had
already been directed towards protection of the dbalance of payments positiOn‘bf
its members,‘care being taken at the same time to ensure that its resources were
not used to perpetuate any existing fundamental disequilibrium in the balanéé of
international transactiona. If remedial or preventlve measures could be applied
in ‘advance, the situation would of course be still more favourable. The Fund

wvag alwys ready to collaborate with its members forithat purpose.

12, Mr. HAAVELMO (Norway) stated, in connexion with the prcposals for
desling with the report, that he would be in favour of reccxmsading taat the
Economic and Social Councll should trensmit the report to Goverumants for study.
The Norwegian Government had not had time to coneider thab proposal, dut

Mr, Haavelmo was confident that it would notiobjact.

/13. He further



E/CN 1/SR.96
Page 5

13. . Hn further suggested thaet 1t should be recommended that the summary
records should be studied in close connexion with the report, since the various
corments and criticisms they contained would be helpful. The Commission should
in 1ts- discussions stress questions of principle and brcad general considera-
tions.

14, ° The CHAIRMAN noted that since all members lad presented general state-
ments on the report as a whole, the Commission would, as previously agreed,

proceed to & more detalled discussion of specific parts of the report.

Part III, 1A

15.. Mr. FLIMING (United Kingdom) stated that, in his opinicn, the Commissic
ccould best contribute to the discussion of the report by setting itself the
object of commenting on the suggestiona of the group of expsrta, presenting the
arguments for and against those suggestions withaut seeking to adopt a definitive
"position on any of the recommsndations.

16, Turning to the question of a full employment target, he observed that
the arguments eesmsd to Ye 1in its favour. All countries, especially the major
induetrial countriea, should give some indication of the quantitetive standards
which they would set in employment poliC{. Such indications would help other
countries in their own planning and also,é%recaating their balance of payments.
Furthermors, the amnouncing of such targets would set useful standards of achieve-
ment and, if appropristely set, would stimulate confidence nationally and inter-
nationally. . , )

7. . He recognized the technical objections to full employment targets,
especially in primery producing countries where self-employment was important.
He noted that the Canadian and French representatives had emphasized the import-
ance of structural unemployment and the substantial variations in such employment.
In large countries it was possible fofvsuch changes to be cancelled out, but in
smaller ccuntries the overall variations were greater. In any case the problem

remained even for large countries,

/18. There



E/CN.1/SR.96
Page 6

18. There were two types of structural unemployment: unemployment in expor.
industries of a temporary mature, which could not be remedied by general measures
for expanding the aggregate demand, and unemplcyment caused by long-term shifts

in demsnd for products. If attempts were made to overcome those structural
difficulties by raising the aggregate derrad through broad fiscal measures, scme
success would be achieved in éliminating structural unemployment but that might
also creato labour shortage and inflationary pressures. However, in apite of

the general tendency to separate the different typee of unemployment, experience
in the United Kingdom had shown that structural unemployment was a function of
the general dermand situation. It was essential to have prosperocus industries

to which labour might shift from depressed industries. If the aggregate demand
were raised enough unemployﬁent would evigffe elirinated in the depressed in-
dustries. In the final anslysis, howaverg/solution might be of & temporary nature
and the structura; difficulties might re-emerge.

19, In order to meet the difficulties of structural unemployment, Governmente
should be free to include some index of the labour shortage in the target formulas
they adopted. The easiest method would be to subtract unfilled vacancies from
the unemplbyment figures and relate the target to the revised figure.

20. He emphasized that no guaréntees would be expected in connexion with
targets adopted by Governments. The appearance of dislocation would Justify
failure to achieve the target set. The experts ad been wise in suggesting a
range rather than a single figure. In that way Governments could make limited
use of variations in their internal situation as a means of coping with balance
of payments difficulties. Most Governmerts were, however, unwilling to see large
variations in employment used as a method of adjusting their balance of payments
_deficiencies{

21. Clearly, Governments must be free to determine and shift their own
targets. It would be wrong for the United Nations to try to allocate or impose
targets in any way. Moreover, each country should be free to determine the
precise mature of the formula which it would adopt.

/22. Mr. DEUTSCH



E/CN.1/SR.96
Page 7

22, Mr. DFUTSCH (Canada) egreed with the United Kingdom on the value of
fixing full employment targets, but subject to several reservations. The
cholce of the target device might suit some countries better than others,
particularly the highly developed countries, which were less exposed to
fluctuations affecting primary products end exports, The Canadian Goverment
had reaffirmed on meny occasions its intention of adopting & policy for the
maintenance of high levels of employment. It had not, however, deflned those
levels mathematically, becanse it was faced with speclal problems of seasonal
unemployment and sxport and primary product fluctwation, The point at which
‘measures were taken and the neture of those meesures would demend upon the
variables in the situation, Rénges rether than preclse figures would have to
be used in the selection of specific targets amd such tergets would have to

be subject %o pericdic revisionl ~ It might be doubted, therefore, wheother
there was anything to be galned ﬁy naming a speciflc figure., A far more
comprehensive exemination would be nceded before & really useful device for

‘fixing targets could be evolved.

23. Mr. HO (China) thought fhat the fixing of employment targets might be
useful at the national level, but might be meaningless at the intermetional
level becaucse conditions varied from ons country to another. It was hard to
see how targets could ever be usefully fixed for countries 1n the pre-industrial

or transitional stage.

2k Mr. LUBIN (United States of America) was perturbed by the problems
involved in fixing & practlical end ratlonal target based upon unemployment
figures to determine the polnt at which autmmatic compensatory measures would
be applled; such a method might be applicable to one country, whereas it might
have no relevence whatever to conditions in another, The definition of
"unemployment" given in paragraph 1h6 of the experts' report (E/1584) was
inadequate. The nmmber of persons unemployed at a given moment was 1n
reality a functlondof the culture of the country concerned. If the school

leaving age of a country, for example, were fourteen, the total of unemployed

/would include,



E/CN.1/SR.96

Page O

would include, for the purposes of Tixing the target, all those leaving school
at that age, so that the compensatory meusures would have to be applied at an
earlier date than would be the case with a country with a school leaving age

of sixteen. .

25, In the United States of Auserica, approximately 600,000 persons
anmally had to be absorbed into the labour force, That figure was a function
of United Stetes laws, as most states had a school lsaving ages of sixteen

end a retirement age of sixty-five,

26. : Other cultural factors would also have to be taken infto account in
estimating the target figure., In 1948, thers had been & consid~ratle increase
of so-called private pensions in the United ®tetes, notably in ths sisal and
automobile industries. Such private pensiopa, however, wore sous3izies not
large enough to withdrew the recipients from the labour mirteh, IS, *therefore,
the target were to be put into effect at the moment a certain perceiiaze figure
was reached, one country mizght be at & disadvantage in relatlon to another,
because 1% might, as a result of its cultural heblts, have to apply the target
earlier than a country which would not begin to apply it until it had mofe
unemployment than appsared on the surface. Unemployment as defined in
paragraph 146 should not, therefore, be the sole criterion for fixing the target.
In addition to the factors suggested by the United Kingiom representative,

some formula must be found to cover the aspects both of employment and of
unemployment, because & high level of unemployment might well co-exist with

a very high level of employment.

27, Furthermore, the report made no provision for the self-employed.

In the United States there were six million independent farmers and from

three to five million self-employed persons. Unemployment in those categories
was a very Important factor at certain stages in the business cycle; 1t must
be teken into consideration., The bankrupt small merchant was Jusf as umuch
unemployed &s the industrial worker who hed been lald off.

28, Another problem was that of the appropriate action in situations in
which aggregate unemployment 1n speclific Industries due to structural conditions
was large enough to approach the target, yet none of the suggested remedial

compensatory measures was appropriate to that particular situation,

/29. Mr, Lubin



E/CN,1/5R.90 -
rane 9

29, Mr. Lubin instanced the boam which had occurred in the immediate post-war
period in the New“England textile industry. ©Subsequently, the market had been
gexurated and inventories had bsen renlaced; euwployment and producticn had
consequently been drastically reduced. A considerable contributing factor in

that reduction had, however, been the change in consumption habits affecting the
particular type of goods produced in the New England miils, whereas no such change
hed adversely affected the industry in the Southern States, at least in terms of
employment.  Even if the Government employed deficit financing, the time required
to produce nsew effective demand would be g0 lang and the prospect of success so
uncertain that, in assessing the improbability of any increase in effective demand,
it would be impossible to distinguish between atructural employment and ineffective
demand, In other words, a very thorough investigation must be made of methods to
determine whether ineffective demand wes the mesult of insufficient purchasing

power or of a changé in cultural habi¥s involving & cansiderable time lag,

“30. The CHAIRMAN, speakinz as the representative of Australia, deprecated
attempts to interpret the experts? reocrt too rigidly. The experts had not
intended that the taraet should ap.ly equally te all countries, but only to those
whose econcmic development made its applicaticn appropriate. The experts had
clearly believed that local factors should be taken into account in fixing
different targets for each country. The technical objections with regard
especially to the self-employed, raised by the repredentative of the United States,
appeared to be a fine distinction rather than a basic problem; it could be
adjusted by statistical experts. The Australian Government had found that,
statistically, the unemployment of the.self-employed tended to fluctuate in
close proportion to generel econamic conditions.

31. ‘There was some question whether unemployment in specific industries,
particularly in the export industries, was due to cyclical or to structural
changes. That question had been studied in same detail in paragraphs 90 to 97
of the report. There was reascn to suppose that variability in the demand

for exports was not necessarily an argument against the validity of

/action targets.



E/CN,.1/SR.
fon 15,96

236

action targeta., It was to some extent truc that the measures proposed might
not be very efficacious for the smaller countries, particularly the exporting
countries; 1f, however, they were applied to the major consuming centrss,
variability of demand might be eliminated, and the problems of the smaller
countries would thus be more easily solved, : o

32, The fixing of the proposed targets was undoubtedly not easy; bdbut he
agreoed with the United Kingdom representative that the difficulties involved

should be rezarded as a chellenge to find some alternative method.

33, Mr, EZEKIEL (Food and Agriculture Organization) felt that it was
disturbing from the agricultural viewpoint that the amount of unemployment
consldered bty the press and Governments as kearable seemed to expand in
proporticn to the increase in unemployments It would therefore be degirable
to have a publicly stated emplagment texget in erder to eliminate such chenges
of view and to render impossible the postponemsnt of urgent and essential
measures, He suggeated that there shouid be a minimum figure, three per cent:
for example, which should serve as a ceutlon level, and a maximum figure,

four per cent, at which action should be taken.,

3k, Miss SENDER (American Federation of Labor) agreed with the
repregentative of Austrelia that the target should not be too rigidly
interpreted., Each country should determine its own target, taking into
account the nature, structural or otherwise, of the unemployment. Some
Governments, In fact, had already drawn up plans to be put into effect at a
given danger point,

35, Mr, de SEYNES (France) asked the United States representative to
what extent self-employed persons and farmers were taken into account in

United States employment statistics,
36, Mr, LUBIN (United States of America) replied that the statistics were

based on & monthly census taken by sampling methods and included anyone who

vag available for and seeking work, 1., e. the total labour force.

/37. Mr, EVANS



E/CN.1/5R.96
B/CN 3RS

age

37.  Mr, EVANS (Internatioral Iatour Orienisation) drew attention to the
fact thét the International Conference of lebour Statisticians which bad been
held two ysars previously had revealed great divergencies in national
practice and had made certain recommendatiors with a view to achisving
greater conformity; +thore wa3, however, an inevitable time lag in their
implementation, |

38. Some years previously the International Iabour'Conference had
decided that in applying the policy of timing public works, “consideration
should be given not only to the omployment situation in the cocuntry as a vhole
but also to the situation In each area and to the particular types of skill
available in the ares concerned". The Emplo;ment Service Convention of 1948
had entrusted that timing to the puollc employment service of each country,

| 39.‘ He felt that there would be ﬁractical difficulties in the way of
applying the proposals contained in paresgraph 146 of the revort in countries
vhere unemployment statistics wore beped golely on unenplinyment insurancé
data and where statiatids on uneuployed persons not covercd by insurance

were not readlly availadble,

‘Lo, Mr, FIEMING (United Kingdom), referring to the effect of aggregate
demand on structural unemployment, pointed out thet although in the suwmer of
1949 exports from the United Kingdom had declined by approximately twenty
per cent compared with the previous winter!s level and had subsequently
recovered, there had been absolutely no change in the unemployment level,
which had remained gtationary at one and a half per cent, Goods had merely
been switched from the export to the home market aﬂd back, When there was a
high level of general demand, structural difficulties were less than they

might appear.

b1, Mr, LUBIN (United States of America) stated that the experience in
the United States had been the contrary. The increase in consumer
expenditure in 1949 had not been sufficient to abmorb the increased number of
workers available, Furthermore, the pcsition could be expected to deteriorate
in 1950 as 400,000 ex-Servicemen would then graduate under the G,I., Bill of
Righte and the economy would therefore have to absorb one million new workers

compared to the yearly average of 600,000,
pa yoarly averag ’ /42, Mr, VEINTRAUB



E/CN.1/SR.96
Pége lé ?

b2, Mr. WEINTRAUB (Secretary of the Commission) drew attention to the
foétnote on pages 40 and 41 of the report, in which the experts elaborated
their consception of the targe® and introduced the idea of a signal level, He
quoted. the second serntence to show that the experts were aware that>two

. Tlguree must be kept in mind: a target ranze of between two and four per cent
and a signal figure two and a half per zent above that; 1t was only when ths
gignal figure was reached that automatic compenseato:ry measures were

. recommended, The margin between the two figures would take into account
increases in all types of unemployment and automatic compensatory action

- weuld not necessarily have to be taken until the signal level was exceeded

- for a epeciflied pericd of time, The footnote therefore incldded

Mr, Ezekiel's 1dea of a cautionary end an action figure,

k3, With regard to the question of the avallability of statistica, he

explained that the experts bed discussed several questions which were not
included in the report and had been awere of the problem raised by the
abgence of data. In fact they had a reccmmendation on statistics in
paragraph 181, They had also sug:ested that the spocialized agencies

and the United Kationa might glve technical assistance to overcome
-Btatistical difficulties., They had assumed that if a Government undertook
to maintain full employment, that implied that it knew the facts or would
make every effort to ascertain them,

The meeting rose at 4 40 p.m

24/1 Pella





